All minutes are draft until agreed at the next meeting of the committee/panel. To find out the date of the next meeting please check the calendar of events at your local library or online at <u>www.merton.gov.uk/committee</u>.

CABINET 8 JUNE 2015 (19.15 - 19.40)PRESENT

Councillor Stephen Alambritis (in the Chair), Councillor Mark Allison, Councillor Nick Draper, Councillor Caroline Cooper-Marbiah, Councillor Andrew Judge, Councillor Edith Macauley, Councillor Maxi Martin, Councillor Judy Saunders and Councillor Martin Whelton

Paul Ballatt (Assistant Director of Commissioning, Strategy and Performance), Ged Curran (Chief Executive), Paul Dale (Assistant Director of Resources), Anthony Hopkins (Head of Library and Heritage Services), Chris Lee (Director of Environment and Regeneration), Fiona Thomsen (Head of Shared Legal Services), Simon Williams (Director of Community and Housing) and Chris Pedlow (Senior Democratic Services Officer).

- ALSO PRESENT Councillors Peter Southgate and Linda Taylor
- 1 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE (Agenda Item 1)

No apologies were received.

# 2 DECLARATIONS OF PECUNIARY INTEREST (Agenda Item 2)

No pecuniary declarations were made.

# 3 MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING (Agenda Item 3)

That the Minutes of the meeting held on 13 May 2015 were agreed as a correct record.

4 COLLIERS WOOD LIBRARY DEVELOPMENT (Agenda Item 4)

The Cabinet Member for Community and Culture presented the report that sought Cabinet's approval for the arrangements for the development of a new library in Colliers Wood. It was noted that planning permission had already been received for the proposed new library site in Cavendish House. The Cabinet Member emphasised that the new library will be much improved on its predecessor and would also include a community space. It was confirmed that during the build the library will be hosted in the Guardian Centre for the blind.

RESOLVED

# That Cabinet

- 1. agrees that the existing lease of Donald Hope Library be surrendered and the Council take a new lease to develop the Cavendish House site to provide improved and efficient library facilities in the Colliers Wood area subject to final terms being agreed by the Director of Environment and Regeneration under his delegated authority.
- 2. replaces the existing capital scheme of £550,000 for Colliers Wood Library provision with a new scheme of £200,000.
- 3. agrees, subject to the authority of the Director of Environment and Regeneration, that a lease of temporary library facilities is taken on the main terms identified within the body of this report whilst the library site is developed.
- 5 REFERENCE TO CABINET FROM OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMISSION ON OUTCOME OF CALL-IN MEETING - ADULT EDUCATION IN MERTON: EVIDENCE AND OPTIONS FOR ACHIEVING A VALUE FOR MONEY SERVICE (Agenda Item 5)

Cabinet considered the reference from the Overview and Scrutiny Commission. The Cabinet Member for Education in response to the recommendations, confirmed that he had met with the school since the scrutiny meeting and would be keeping them updated on that matter. On the second recommendations he also confirmed that views of staff working for the adult education service had been taken into account and they were following the HR procedures of the council.

Cabinet thanked the Commission for their comments and their constructive discussion held at their meeting on 10 March 2015.

## RESOLVED

That Cabinet:

- 1. confirms that Joseph Hood Primary School would be kept fully informed of the decision process regarding any plans for the future use of the Whatley Avenue site
- 2. confirms that views of staff working for the adult education service had been taken into account of the, as set out in the consultation results and expressed at the meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Commission on 10 March 2015, and works with staff in a positive and constructive manner, in accordance with the HR procedures of the council.

# 6 SECONDARY SCHOOL EXPANSION (Agenda Item 6)

The Cabinet Member for Education presented the report which reminded Members that the Council has provided an additional 2000 primary school spaces with a commitment of a further 2000 places, through the successful primary school expansion programme.

However by 2018 the Borough will require an extra 300 year 7 places in our secondary schools. It was noted that part of those additional places should be covered by the planned new secondary in Wimbledon which has been given permission by the Government.

However there is also a need to expand the current schools across the borough and as a result, the recommendation was that the Council enter into a pre-construction agreement with Willmott Dixon for the expansion of Harris Morden, Harris Merton and St. Mark's Academy under the SCAPE framework. It was confirmed that the proposal does not commit the council to the expansion of those schools, just to start the investigations of how such expansion could occur.

## RESOLVED

That Cabinet:

- notes the significant increase in demand for secondary school places flowing from primary schools, with an immediate need for at least an addition 300 year 7 places (10 forms of entry) required by September 2018.
- 2. notes the limited options available for expansion of existing schools, and the need for a new secondary school in the Wimbledon area to complement deliverable expansions to the east of the borough. Following Secretary of State approval this would be delivered through the Harris Wimbledon School and so responsibility for identifying a site rests with the Department for Education under the Free School programme, but the council can facilitate this process.
- 3. agrees that the council enters into a pre-construction agreement with Willmott Dixon for the expansion of Harris Morden, Harris Merton and St. Mark's Academy under the SCAPE framework with clearly costed break-clauses at key stages to allow for the fact that:
  - (a) It is not clear all projects will progress to construction so any scheme may stop after design Stage C
  - (b) The timescales for implementing is not clear and the council may choose, after stage E, to instead follow a competitive tender route for construction if it is better value for money, especially if schemes are not implemented to similar timescales

# 7 MERTON HEALTH AND WELLBEING STRATEGY (Agenda Item 7)

The Cabinet Member for Adult Social Care and Health presented the report which included a copy of the refreshed Merton Health and Wellbeing Strategy 2015-18. The strategy had been developed with our partners and it had already been endorsed by the Health and Wellbeing Board.

The key focus of the strategy was on reducing health inequalities, also to halt the rise in the gap in life expectancy across the Borough. It was noted that the five key priorities were:

- Best start in life early years development and strong educational achievement.
- Good health focus on prevention, early detection of long-term conditions and access to good quality health and social care
- Life skills, lifelong learning and good work
- Community participation and feeling safe
- A good natural and built environment

The Cabinet in considering the report, collectively expressed their support for the strategy, especially how the five key priorities intertwined through their portfolios. They emphasised that the health and wellbeing of our residents needs to be at the forefront of the work of the Council, through all its various services.

## RESOLVED

That Cabinet approves the refreshed of the Merton Health and Wellbeing Strategy 2015-18

# 8 2014-15 FINANCIAL OUTTURN REPORT (Agenda Item 8)

The Deputy Leader and Cabinet Member for Finance presented the report, which provided the provisional out-turn position for 2014/15 financial year. It was highlighted that for the first time in recent years the Council had an overspend at the end of a financial year, and as such it has had a knock on impact on the use and levels of the council reserves. It was noted that the report broke down the Council expenditure by service departments and provided details of the capital outturn.

## RESOLVED

That Cabinet:

- 1. notes the draft provisional revenue outturn for 2014/15
- 2. approves the proposed net slippage into 2015/16 of £7,203k